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DocuSign Envelope ID: EEFOE41A-7228-4637-B8C6-8991D0796601

TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022

The Directors present their Report and the audited consolidated financial statements of Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited (the “Parent
Company™) and its subsidiaries {together the “Group™) for the 52 weeks ended 26 February 2022 (prior period: 52 weeks ended
27 February 2021 (“2021™)).

Business review and principal activity

The principal activity of the Parent Company is o act as a holding company for the other entities in The Tesco Sarum Lumited
Partnership Group. There has been no significant change in the nature or level of this activity during the period and the Directors
do not expect this to change significantly throughout the next financial period.

The financial statements of the Parent Company and the Group have been prepared in aceordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard 102, *I'he Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland™ (' FRS 1027).

Results and dividends

The results for the 52 weeks ended 26 February 2022 show a results before tax of £nil (2021: profit before tax of £79) and a
profit after tax of £128 (2021: £71). The Group has net assets at the period end of £204,439 (2021: £204.311} and has net
current assets at the pertod end of £208.419 (2021: £208.291).

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for the period ended 26 February 2022 (2021 £nil).
Future developments

The Group's and the Parent Company’s future performance is expected to continue throughout the next financial period and it
is anticipated that the current perfonnance levels will be maintained.

The Group’s future developments form a part of the Tesco PLC Group's (“PLC Group”) long term strategy, which is discussed
on pages 4 to 30 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022, which do not formn a part of this Report,

Principal risks and uncertainties

From the perspecuve of the Parent Company, the principal risks relate to the carrying value of the investments that this Parent
Company holds.

To manage the risk the Parent Company periodically reviews the financial statements of the entities the Parent Company has
mvestments in.

From the perspective of the Group, the principal risks and uncertainties of the Parent Company are integrated with the principal
risks of the PLC Group and are not managed separately. Accordingly, the principal risks and uncertainties of the PLC Group.
which include the Parent Company, are discussed on pages 31 to 37 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements
2022, which do not form a part of this Report.

No impairment losses were recognised during the period (2021 £nil).

The Parent Company’s financial instruments comprise debtors, creditors and cash at banks.

Business risk

The Parent Company’s principal business relationships are with Tesco PLC Group companies which, by nature of their
business, have continued to operale as essential businesses during the pandemic. This has served to mitigate some of the risk
the Parent Company is exposed 0. At present, there is an increased level of macroeconomic uncertainty, which is beginning to
show initial signs of impact on operational costs. This uncertainty has been exacerbated by the war in Ukraine. The Group is
actively monitoring the situation and contingency measures are in place to manage these risks across the Group. As such,
management believe that the short-term risks and impacts are understood and appropriate controls are in place. However. the
long-term impacts remain uncertain and will continue to be monitored closely. The Group will continue to assess and monitor
the potential risks and impacts on the Parent Company and its stakeholders as a whole, while taking mitigation measures 1o
address local challenges as appropriate.
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED
DIRECTORS® REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022 {continued)

Financial risk management

The Group’s and Parent Company’s activities expose it to a number of financial instrument risks which includes credit risk and
Liquidity risk.

Credit visk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a tinancial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation. The receivables of the Parent Comipany are primarily pertaining to receivables from Group undertakings. hence credit risk
is determined to be low.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the nisk that the Group will encounter difticulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The
payables of the Parent Company are primarily pertaining to payables to Group undertakings, the liquidity risk is determined to be
low.

Going concern

In order to form a view as to the most appropriate basis of preparation of these financial statements, the Directors consider that
the Group has adequate resources Lo remain in operation for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial
statements and have therefore continued to adopt the going concern basis 1n preparing the financial statements.

The Directors consider that the Group is able to meet its liabilities as they fall due, and accordingly, the financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Events after the reporting period

Details of events after the reporting period can be found i Note 17 to the financial statements.

Political donations

There were no political donations for the period (2021: £nil) and the Group and the Parent Company did not incur any political
expenditure (2021: £nil).

Research and development

The Group does not undertake any research and development activities (2021: £nil).

Strategic Report

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption provided by section 414B of the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report
and Directors” Report) Regulations 2013 from preparing a Strategic Report.

Employees

The Group had no employees during the period (20211 none).

Directors
The following Directors served during the period and up 10 the date of signing the financial statements. unless otherwise stated:

D Anniss (resigned on 5 May 2021)

D Wheeler (appointed on 29 April 2021)

J Gibney (resigned on 25 February 2022)

M&R Sarum 3 Limited (resigned on 17 December 2021)
M&R Sarum 4 Limited (resigned on 17 December 2021)
$ Williams (appointed 25 February 2022)

Tesco Services Limited

None of the Directors had any disclosable interests in the Parent Company during the period.

A qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined 1 Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 is in force for the benefit of
the Tesco PLC Company Secretary (who is also a Director of Tesco Services Limited which 1s appointed to the Board of the
Company) in respect of lisbilities incurred as a result of their office, to the extent permitted by law.

21Puavve



DweuSign Envelope 1D, ERFGE41A-TZ2B-4637-BECE 898100796601

TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

Directors (continued)

I respect ofthose Tiabilies torw hich divectors wisd olTicers may not be sndemmilied. Tesco PLO ncunned o Directors” s
Qrticers” labihny msuranee poles threughout e fnaociad peried and up o the date of signiog the Grancial staements.

Diselosure of information 10 auditer
Faeh Direcior who is a Director of the Parent Company at the date of approval of these financial statements confirms that:
o 50 tar o the Darectors are avware, there s no relevant information of which the Parent Compamy's auditor is
unaware: angd
o (he Directors have taken ail the steps that ought w have been tuben as o Director 1o be sware ofany relevant audil
mtormation and to establish that the Parent Company's auditor s avware of that informdion.

This confirmation is gisen and should be imterpreted in aceotdance with the provisions of section 418 ot the Companies At
2000,

Camtionary Statement regarding forwird-looking information

Where this document contains torward-looking stutenwents, these are made by the Directors in good faith based on the
information gvarlable 1o them at the time of their approvai of this Report. These statements should be treated with caution due
w the inherent risks and uncerwinties underlying amy such lorward-looking information, A number of tactors, including those
in this docyment, could cause actual results 1o differ materialiy from those contained in any forward-looking statement.
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The Directors ure responsibie fur preparnog the Anousl Report and the consotidated fimancal statements i accordance with
applicable Low and regulations, Company Law requires the Directors w prepare tinameial statements for cach tinancial period.
Under that fuw the Directors have elected te prepare the Group and Parent Company Sinancual statements in accordance with
FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standards applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Treland™ and upplicable
tuw.

Under Compans Eaw ., the Directors must not approve the inaneal statements unless they aie saustied that they gove srue and
fair swew o the state of aflairs of the Group and Parent Compamy and o the prolit or Toss ol the Group for that penod. In
preparing these inancial statements. the DHrectors are required to:

o seleet suitable accounting policies and then apply then consistently:
o mghe qudecments and aecounting estmsaees that are reasonable and pradent: and
& prepare the Nuanciad statements on the gotg coneern basis anless iCis inappropriate o presume thas the Group’s and

Company s will continue in business.

I'he Darectors are responsible for Keeping adequate secounting records that are sutticient to show and explain the Grroup and
Parent Company's transactions and disclose with reasonabte accuracy atany time the financial position ot the Group and Parent
Conmpans and eaable them o cisure that the fmneial statements comply with the Companies Aet 2006, They ure alse
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Parent Company and heneg 1ot tahing reasonable sieps tor the prevention snd

detection ot fraud and other irregularitics,

Independent auditor

Deloitte LEP, e ing indicated tis willingness o continue in oftice. will be deemed to be reappomnted as auditor under section
A7) of the Companies At 2000,

R

vpproved by the Boaed on 19 August 20220 and signed on behallor ithe Boasd by:

ffj"\w/u

Robert YW elch

For and on behall’ ot Tesco Services Linnited, Pirector

Feseo Sarum (G imed

Registered Number: 07849882

Rewistered Ottice: Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Was s Welwyn Garden Citv, ALT TGAL United Kingdom
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TESCO SARUM (GP)
LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited (the “Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries (the *Group’):

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 26 February 2022 and
of the Group’s profit for the 52 weeks penod then ended:

s  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepied Accounting Practice including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Treland™;
and

&  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
«  the Group Protit and Loss Account;
¢ the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheet;
¢ the Group and Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity.
e the Group Cash Flow Statement;
e  the Group Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to movement in Net Debt; and
¢ the related Notes 1 to 17.

The tinancial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 162 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland™ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the andit of the tinancial
statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial staterments in the UK, including the Financral Reporting Council’s {the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and
we have tulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concem basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements 1s appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identitied any material uncertainties relating to events or condittons that.
individually or collectively, may cast sigmficant doubt on the Group's and Parent company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authonsed for issue.

Our respousibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to gomng concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statemenis and our
auditor’s report thereon, The dircctors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opimon
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matenally
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informatien, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

4 |Puee
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 10 THE MEMBERS OF TESCO SARUM (GP)
LIMITED (contintied}

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

I preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parcat company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are tree from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: www.frc. org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities. including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the Group's industry and its control environment and reviewed the Group’s documentation of their
policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management about
their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the Group operates in, and identified the key laws
and regulations that:

* had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These included
UK Companies Act and 1ax legislation: and

¢ do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the Group’s
ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed mmong the audit engagemeni team including relevant internal specialists such as tax and financial instruments
specialist regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud
might oceur in the financial statements.

In common with all audits under [SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management overnide of controls, we tested the appropriateness
of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative
of a potential bias: and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or cutside the normal
course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond 1o the risks identified included the following:

¢ reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting doctmentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct etfect on the financial statements;

* performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud;

S5|Puce



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TESCO SARUM (GP)
LIMITED {(coatinued)

Extent to which the audit was considered eapable of detecting irregularities, including fraud (continued)

s enquiring of management and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims, and instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations: and
¢ reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
»  the information given in the Directurs’ Report Lor the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
1s consistent with the financial statements; and
s  the Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified any matenal misstatements in the Director’s Report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:
s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company and the Group; or
e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
»  certain disclosures of directors” remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
¢ the Directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption from the reguirement to prepare
a strategic report.

We have nothing to repert in respect of these matters.
Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume respensibility to anyone other than the Parent company and the Parent company’s members as a
body. for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

P

A o

David Griffin FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

19 August 2022
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022

Operating profit 4

Interest receivable and similar income

Result/profit before taxation

Tax credit/(charge) on result/profit 6

Notes 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £

- 79

- 79

128 (8)

128 71

Profit for the financial period

There is no other comprehensive income m the periods presented.; therefore,
been prepared.

All operations are continuing for the current financial period.

The notes on pages 12 to 20 form part of these financial statements.

no statement of comprehensive income has

TIPaew
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 26 FEBRUARY 2022

Group Parent Company
Notes 26 February 27 February 26 February 27 February
2022 2021 2022 2021
¥ L £ L
Fixed asser
Investinents ¥ 20 20 220 220
20 20 220 220

Current assets
Deterred 1oy assels 7 204 72 200 72

Debtors: amounts falling due within

one year 9 R 4008 1.000 1,000
Cash at bunk and in hand 296,038 296,038 295,837 293837
300.238 RIVIRRIY 297,037 296,909
;ll:l:llll:li:l)]\]ed\!‘ftl];llll\ falling due 10 (91,819} (91,819} (91.818) (91,8183
Net current assets 208.419 208.291 205,219 203091
Total assets less current liabilities 208,139 208.311 205,439 205311
fl;ﬁfl“[‘l’lf:; :.?:“vlgl: lalling dug utter ¥ (4000 (4.000) (1,000) (1,0003
Net assets 204,439 204311 204,439 204311
Cuapital and reserves
Culled up share capital i3 1000 10,000 10,000 10.000
Share premium (4 192,842 142842 192,842 [92842
Profit and loss account 14 1.597 L469 1,597 1,469
Total shareholders™ funds 204,439 20431 204,439 2431

The Parent Compuny s total protis for the financial period ended 26 February 202205 €128 (2021 £71),
The notes on pages 12 1o 20 are an integral part of these Gnancial statements.

The Tnancial statements on pages 7 to 20 were approved by the Board ol Directors on 19 August 2022 and signed on s
behall by,

@V\W

RRobert Welch

Forand on behalt of Tesco Serveces Lumited, Director

Tesco sarum (GPY Linated

Registered Number: 07849882

Registered Office: Tesco House. Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City. ALT TGAL United Kimgdem
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE 52
WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022

Called up Share Profit and Total
share capital™ premium loss account

£ £ £ £

Balance as at 29 February 2020 10,000 192,842 1,398 204.240

Profit and total comprehensive income 71 -
tor the financial period

Balance as at 27 February 2021 10,000 192,842 1,469 204311

Profit sive i

rofit and totz.nl comprehemn ¢ income i i 128 128
for the financial period

Balance as at 26 February 2022 10,000 192,842 1,597 204,439

*See Note 13 for a breakdown of the Called up share capital.

The notes on pages 12 1o 20 are an imegral part of these financial statements.

9‘P;l‘§\,’
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

26 February 27 February
2022 2021
£ £
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax - 79
Less: Interest received - 79
Cash tflow from investing activities
Interest received - 79
Net cash flows from investing activities - 79
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - 79
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 296,038 295,959
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 296,038 296,038

The notes on pages 12 to 20 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

GROUP RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOYEMENT INNET DEBT FOR THE
52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022

Notes 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £

Increase w1 cash and cash equivalents 12 - 79
Opening cash balances 12 200,219 200,140
Closing cash balances ) 200,219 200,219

The notes on pages 12 to 20 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS
26 FEBRUARY 2022

1. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited (the “Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group™)
have been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards. including Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of lreland™ (“FRS 102™) and the
Companies Act 2006 on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention,

2. General information

The Parent Company is a private company, limited by shares and is incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under
the Companies Act 2006.

The address of the registered office 15 Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA, United
Kingdom. The nature of the Parent Company’s and the Group's operations and its principal activities are set out in the Directors
Report on pages 1 to 4. Details of the Parent Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 8,

The financial statements of the Parent Company for the 52 weeks period ended 26 February 2022 were approved by the Board
of Directors on 19 August 2022 and the Balance Sheet was signed on the Board’s behalf by Robert Welch on behalf of Tesco
Services Limited.

The functional and presentational currency of the Parent Company and the Group is Pound Sterling (£) because that is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Parent Company and the Group operates. The consolidated
financial statements are also presented in Pound Sterling.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been apphed consistently throughout the year and to
the preceding year, unless otherwise stated.

3. Accounting policies
a) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary undertakings.

The financial period represents 52 weeks ended 26 February 2022 (prior financial period :52 weeks ended 27 February 2021).
For the subsidiaries, the financial period is also 52 weeks ended 26 February 2022 (prior financial peried: 52 weeks ended 27
February 2021).

The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired are included from the date of acquisition until the date on which the Parent
Company ceases 1o contro] the subsidiary. Business combinations are accounted for under the purchase method. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries 1o bring the accounting policies used into line with
those used by the Group. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

As Consolidated Group Profit and Loss Account is published, 2 separate Profit and Loss Account for the Parent Company is
omitted trom the Group financial statements by virtue of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The Parent Company is a
qualifying entity for the purpose of FRS 102. Consequently, as per section 1.12(b) the Parent Company, has taken the exemption
from the requirement to prepare a Cash Flow Statement under the terms of FRS 102 section 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™. The
Consolidated Group financial statements consists of the financial statements of Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited and its 100%
subsidiaries: The Tesco Sarum (Nominee 1) Limited. The Tesco Sarum (Nominee 2) Limited and The Tesco Sarum (Nominee
Holdco) Limited.

b) Geing concern
In order to form a view as to the most appropriate basis of preparation of these financial statements, the Directors consider that

the Group has adequale resources to remain in operation for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial
statements and have therefore continued 10 adopt the going concem basis in preparing the tinancial statements.

121 Py
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

b) Geing concern {continued)

The Directors consider that the Group is able to meet its habilities as they tall due, and accordingly, the financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

¢) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s and Parent Company’s accounting policics, which are described hereafter, the Directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and Liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Acmal results may differ from these estimates.

The Directors do not consider any of the estimates and judgements made within these financial statements as sigmficant.
d) Significant accounting policies

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost plus incidental expenses less where appropriate provisions for
impairment. Impairment is reviewed annually with movements taken to the Profit and Loss Account. The Group elected te
adopt the cost model for holding its investments as permitted under section 9 of FRS 102.

Impairment of investments

At each Balance Sheet date, the Group and the Parent Company reviews the carrying amounts of imvestments to determine
whether there is any need for impairment in accordance with Section 27 of FRS 102, "Impairment of Assets™. Any impairment
is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account in the period in which 1t occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group and Paremt Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The expected maturity of the financial assets and liabilities is not
considered to be materially different to their current and non-current classification.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measuremeni

The Group and Parent Company determines the classification of its financial assets at imitial recognition. All financial assets
are recognised on initial measurement at transaction price including directly attributable transaction costs. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time trame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date. 1.e.. the date that the Group and Parent Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset. The Group's and the Parent Company’s financial assets include cash and debtors.

Subsequent meastrement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Debtors

Debitors are non-derivative financial assets with [ixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assels are initially recognised on initial measurement at transaction price including directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective mterest method (EIR), less impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into accoumnt any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Profit and Loss Account. For a non-interest bearing debtors that is
receivable within one year on normal business terms, amortised cost shall be measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash
or other consideration expected to be received (i.e., net of impairment). Losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Profit and Loss Account in other operating expenses.

1310
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

d) Significant Accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group and the Parent Company determine the classification of its financial liabilities at inittal recognition. All financial
liabilities are recognised initially ai transaction cost and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly aunbutable
transacuon costs.

Subsequent nreasurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classitication as follows:

Creditors

Creditors are non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments. Such liabilities are initially recognised
at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
caleulated by taking into account transaction costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
mterest expense in the Profit and Loss Account. For a non-interest bearing creditors that is payable within one year on normal
business terms, amortised cost shall be measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be
paid.

De-recognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when (a) the contractuai rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or are settled: (b) the Group transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset: or {¢) the Group, despite having retained some, but not all, significant risks and rewards of ownership, has transferred
conirol of the asset o another party. Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged. cancelled or expired.

Income taxes

Current tax, including United Kingdom (UK) corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or
recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. The tax
currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.

Group relief on laxation

The Group may receive or surrender group relief from group companies without payment and consequently there may be no
tax charge in the Profit and Loss Account.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted
for using the balance sheet method. Deferred 1ax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be wilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the iemporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

d) Significant Accounting pelicies (continued)
Income taxes (continued)
Deferred tax (continned)

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that if is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to wiilise the benefits of
the temporary ditferences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sutficient taxable
profits will be available to aliow all or part of the asset 10 be recovered.

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the 1ax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the Liability is settled, or the asset is
realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its asscts and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current tax and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the profit or loss, except when they relate to iterns that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less.

4. Operating profit

The Directors received no emoluments for their services to the Group and the Parent Company (202F: £ml).
The Group and Parent Company had no employees during the period (2021: none).

The auditor’s remuneration of £4,100 (2021: £4,100) for the current period and prior period was bome by The Tesco Sarum
Limited Partnership. The non-audit fees for the period is £nil (2021 £nil).

5. Interest receivable and similar income

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £

Interest receivable on bank deposits - 79
- 79

I5/Page
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

6. Tax (credit)/charge on results/profit

{a) Factors that have affected the tax charge

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK at the balance sheet date is 19%. This gives a corporation tax rate for the
Company for the full period of 19% (2021:19%).

The Finance Act 2021 included legislation to increase the main rate of UK corporation tax tfrom 19% to 25% from 1 April
2023. As the change 10 the main UK corporation tax rate was substantively enacted by the balance sheet date the impact is
included in these financial statements with temporary differences remeasured using the enacted tax rates that are expected
o apply when the liability is seuled or the asset realised.

The tax charge relates to the Partner's share of any taxable profit charge incurred within the Limited Partnership. The share
is representative of ity holding within i1s investment, as shown in Note 8.

(b) Tax (credit)/charge in the Profit and Less Account

The analysis of the (credit)/charge for the period is as tollows:

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
26 February 2022 27 February 2021
£ £
Current income tax;

UK corporation taX on profit for the financial period - -
Total current income tax charge - -
Deferred tax charge:

- Current period (7 15
- Impact of rate change adjustment (49) )
Total deferred tax (credit)/charge (128) 8
Tax (credit)/charge in the Profit and Loss Account (128) 8

(c) Reconciliation of the effective tax (credit)/charge

The ditferences between the total (credit)/charge shown above and the amount calculated by applying the UK corporation
tax rate 1o profit is as follows:

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £

Results/profit before tax - 79

Tax charge at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2021: 19%) - 15
Effects of:

- Expenses not deductible 36 -

- Group relief claimed without payment (115) -

- Impact of rate change adjustment (49) (D

Total tax (credit)/charge (128) 8

16 Pay .
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 352 WEEKS ENDED

26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

7. Deferred tax asset

The following are the major deferred wx assets recognised by the Group and Parent Company and movements thereon
during the current and prior financial periods measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply when the liability is
settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet

date:
Short-term Conversion Accelerated Tax losses Total
timing adjustment capital
differences allowance
£ £ £ £
At 27 February 2021 1,557 (42) (2,324) 881 72
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences
- In respect of the current period 656 10 (118) (469) 79
- Rate change 699 9) 771 130 49
At 26 February 2022 2912 (41) {3,213) 542 200
Short-term Conversion Accelerated Tax losses Total
timing adjustiment capital
ditferences allowance
£ £ £ £ £
At 29 February 2020 1.191 an (1,962) 308 80
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences
- In respect of the current period 229 10 (130 (123) (15)
- Rate change 137 (5 (231) 106 7
At 27 February 2021 1,557 (42) (2.324) 881 72

Deterred 1ax assets and liabilities are offset only where the Group and Parent Company has a legally enforceable right to do
so and where assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

8. Investments

Cost

A127 February 2021
At 26 February 2022
Net book value

AL 27 February 2021
At 26 February 2022

Group Parent Company
£ £

20 220

20 220

20 220

20 220

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by the underlying net assets as the subsidianes
holds the legal title and the economic rights to all the investment property leased by The Tesco Sarum Limited Parinership.
In assessing the valuation of its fixed asset investments. the Directors review the underlying net assets of each subsidiary, its

profit for the period as well as the future economic benefits to be generated from such net asscts.

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 information on the Parent Company’s and Group’s investments are set out

below.,
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

8. Investments {continued)

Details of the Parent Company’s subsidiary undertakings as at 26 February 2022:

Name of entity Registered office address/ Place Share Class Direct/Indirect %
of incorporation holding shares/interest
held

Tesco Sarum (Nominee | Tesco House Shire Park, Kestrel [ £ 1.00 Ordinary Dhrect 100%
Holdco) Limited Way, Welwyn Garden City, ALY Shares

1GA, United Kingdom
Tesco Sarum (Nominee | Tesco House Shire Park. Kestrel [ ¢ gp Ordinary Indirect 100%
1) Limited Way. Welwyn Garden City, ALY Shares

1GA. United Kingdom
Tesco Sarum (Nominee | 1¢5¢0 House Shire Park. Kestrel | £ 1 00 Ordinary Indirect 100%
2) Limited Way, Welwyn Garden City, ALY Shares

LGA, United Kingdom

Details of the Parent Company’s and Group’s other investments as at 26 February 2022:

Other investinents Registered office address/ Place of Direct /Indirect % shares/interest held
incorporation holding

The Tesco Sarum Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Direct 0.1%

Limited Welwyn Garden City, AL7 IGA, United

Partnership Kingdom.

A copy of the latest financial statements of The Tesco Sarum Limited Partnership will be appended to the copy of the Parent
Company's financial statements sent to the registrar under section 444 of the Compantes Act 2006,

8. Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Parent Company
26 February 27 February 26 February 27 February
2022 202] 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
The Tesco Sarum Limited Partmership 4,000 4,000 1,000 1,000
4,000 4,000 1,000 1.000

Amounts owed by The Tesco Sarum Limited Partnership are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand.

10. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Parent Company
26 February 27 Febmary 26 February 27 February
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Spen Hill Regeneradion Limited 1 { - .
The Tesco Sarum Limited Partnership 91,818 91,818 51,818 91818
91,819 91,819 91,818 91,818

Amounts owed to The Tesco Sarum Limited Partnership and Spen Hill Regeneration Limited are unsecured, interest free,
have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand.

I8 | Papv
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

52 WEEKS ENDED

11. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Tesco Property Finance 5 PLC

Group Parent Company
26 February 27 February 26 February 27 February
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
4,000 4,000 1,000 1.000
4,000 4,000 1,000 1.000

On 31 January 2012, the Parent Company entered into a loan agreement with Tesco Property Finance 5 PLC. The loan is
interest free, unsecured and is repayable within one month of 10 October 2041. No early repayment is permitted.

12. Analysis of changes in Net debt

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors

13. Called up share capital

Allotted, called up and tully paid:

5000 Ordinary ‘A’ shares of £1 each

(2021: 5,000 Ordinary ‘A’ shares of £] each)
5,000 Ordinary "B’ shares of £1 each

(2021: 5.000 Ordinary ‘B’ shares of £1 cach)

27 February 2021

Net cash flow

26 February 2022

£ £

296,038 - 296,038

(95.819) - (95.819)

200,219 - 200,219

29 February 2020 Net cash flow 27 February 2021
£ £

295,959 79 296,038

(95.819) - (95.819)

200,140 79 200,219

Group and Parent Company

26 February 12022

27 February 2021

£ £
5,000 5,000
5,000 5,000
10,600 10,000

*A’ shares and "B" shares each constitute a separate class of shares. Both classes of shares have the same rights and rank pan
passu in all respects, The shares have attached to them full voting, dividend and capital distribution (including en winding

up) rights: they do not cenfer any rights of redemption.
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 {continued)

14. Reserves

The reserve are as follows -
a) Profit and Loss Account comprises of prior and current year's undistributed earnings afier tax.

b}  Share premium aceount includes the premium on issues of equity shares, net of any issue costs.

15. Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

Tesco Property Holdings (No. 2) Limited is the Parent Company's imimediate parent undertaking,

Tesco PLC is the Parent Company’s ultimate parent undertakings. Tesco PLC is registered in England and Wales. Copies of

the Tesco PLC Annual Report and financial statements are available from the Company Secretary at the registered office:
Tesco PLC, Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA, United Kingdom.

16. Related party transactions

During the 52 weeks period ended 26 February 2022 the Parent Company entered into transactions with related parties, in
the ordinary course of business. Transactions entered into, and balances outstanding at 26 February 2022, are as follows:

26 Fehruary 2022 27 February 2021
Balances for Group Relationship Debters Creditors Debtors Creditors

£ £ £ £
The Tesco Sarum Limited Investmem_m partnership 4,000 91,818 4.000 91.818
Partnership firm
Balances for Parent 26 February 2022 27 February 2021
C n Relationship Debtors Creditors Debtors Creditors

ompany .

£ £ £ £
The Tesco Sarum Limited Invcs[mcnlvm partnership 1,000 91,818 1.000 91.818
Partnership firm

Reference to balance disclosed outstanding at the period end are disclosed in Notes 9 and 10.

17. Events after the reporting period

There are no material events since the Batance Sheet date which require disclosure.
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TESCO SARUM (GP) LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED

26 FEBRUARY 2022

Operating profit

Interest receivable and similar income
Result/profit before taxation
Tax credit/{charge)

Profit for the financial period

This page docs not form part of the audited financial statements.

52 weeks ended
26 February 2022

52 weeks ended
27 February 2021

£ £
- 79
. 79
128 (8)
128 71
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022

Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited (the "General Partner”) presents its Strategic Report of The Tesco Sarum Limited
Partnership (the "Partnership”) for the 52 weeks ended 26 February 2022 (prior period: the 52 weeks ended 27
February 2021 (-20217)).

Business review and principal activity

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry out property investment in retail stores and mixed-use units for
which a rental income is received.

There has been no significant change in the nature or level of this activity during the period and the General Partner
does not expect this to change significantly throughout the next financial peried. In December 2021, Tesco Sarum
(1LP) Limited acquired 50% interest in the Sarum Limited Partnership from Trinity College Cambndge.

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards
applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland (*FRS 102").

Results and distributions

The results for the period show a profit atter tax of £56,782,413 (2021: £351,630), total comprehensive income of
£29,998,943 (total comprehensive loss 2021: £1,877,522) and rental incomne of £28.416,755 (2021: £27,971.360).

During the period the Partnership distributed £nil (2021: £nil).

The Partnership has net assets of £65,683,096 (2021; £35,684,153) at the period end and net current liabilities of
£8,451,741 (2021: £3,209,209).

The General Partner does not consider this a going concern risk as future rental incoms streams are hedged through
a Retail Price Index (“RPI") linked swap to ensure that the Partnership can meet its financial obligations.

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

Given the straightforward nature of the business, the General Partner is of the opimion that analysis using key
performance indicators is not necessary for an understanding of the development, performance or position of the
business.

The development, performance and position of the operations of the Tesco PLC Group (the “Group™), which

includes the Partnership, is discussed on page 16 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022,
which does not form a part of this Report.

Future developments

The Partnership’s future developments form a part of the Group’s long term strategy, which is discussed on pages
4 to 30 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022, which do not form a part of this Report.
The Pattnership’s performance is expected to continue throughout the next financial period and it is anticipated that
the current performance levels will be maintained.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Partnership's activities expose it to risks and uncertainties as summarised below. The Partnership’s financial
nstruments comprise the Partnership loan and an RPI linked swap arrangements.

The principal risks and uncertainues are related to property investment into the retail stores. These risks include the
exposure to fluctuations in the open market value of the investment properties.

The property portfolio is managed to ensure its value is maximised.

From the perspective of the Partnership, the principal risks and uncertainties are mtegrated with the principal risks
of the Tesco PLC Group and are not managed separately. Accordingly, the prineipal risks and uncertainties of the
Tesco PLC Group, which include the Partnership, are discussed on pages 31 to 37 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report
and Financial Statements 2022, which do not form part of this Report.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (confinued)
Business risk

The Partnership’s principal business relationships are with Tesce PLC Group companies which, by nature of their
business, have continued to operate as essential businesses during the pandemic. This has served to mitigate some
of the risk the Partnership is exposed to. At present, there is an increased level of macrocconomic uncertainty, which
is beginning to show initial signs of impact on operational costs. This uncertainty has been exacerbated by the war
in Ukraine. The Group is actively monitoring the situation and contingency measures are in place to manage these
risks across the Group. As such, management believe that the short-term risks and impacts are understood and
appropriate controls are in place. However, the long-term impacts remain uncerfain and will continue to be
monitored closely. The Group will continue to assess and monitor the potential nisks and impacts on the Partnership
and its stakeholders as a whole, while taking mitigation measures to address local challenges as appropriate.

Financial risk management

The main risks associated with the Partnership’s financial assets and liabilities are set out below:

Credit risk

Credit risk 1s the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation. The credit risk posed by the Partnership’s sole customer, Tesco Stores Limited, is

determined 1o be low, and the Partnership monitors the credit risk of Tesco PLC (ultimate parent of Tesco Stores
Limited), to ensure their ability to discharge their obligations as lessee.

The Partnership’s own credit risk is also managed through the use of a RPI rate swap contract to fix its cash inflows
so that it is able 10 meet its fixed-rate interest and capital repayments along with its administrative costs.

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The principal risks and uncertainties are related to rental property income from investment in

the retail stores and mixed-use units being sufficient to meet the obligation to make repayments against the Joans
when due.

The Partnership manages this using a managing agent, who manages its occupational leases and actively manages
the receipt of arrears for the Partnership.

Marker risk

The Partnership’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in RP!I rates which could cause the
Partnership difficulty in meeting its obligations if the level of RPI uplifts does not rise enough to enable the
Partnership to meet its obligations under the loan agreement. See Note 12 for further information with regards to
the risks ideniified. The Partnership uses RPI rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures. Interest bearing assets
and liabilities are held at fixed rate to ensure certainty of cash tlows.

Section 172(1) Statement

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires a director of a company to act in the way he or she considers, in
good faith, would most likely promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole. In
doing this section 172 requires directors to have regard to, amongst other matters, the:

likely consequences of any decisions in the long-term;

interests of the company’s employees;
e nced io foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;
s impact of the company’s operations on the community and environment;
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continucd)

Section 172(1) Statement (continued)

s desirability of the company maintzining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
« need to act fairly as between members of the company.

[n discharging our section 172 dutics we have regard to the factors setl out above. In addition, we also have regard
10 other factors which we consider relevant to the deeision bemng made.

Those factors {or example include the interests and views of our leascholders and members of the Tesco Group. By
considering the Limited Partnership’s purposc. together with its strategic priorities and having a process in place for
decision-making, we aim 1o make sire that decisions are consistent and appropriate m all the circumstances.

We delegate authority for day-to-day management of the Partnership to the General Partner’s senior management.
Board meetings are held periodically where the Partnership considers its activities and makes decisions. As a part
of those meetings the Pariners receive infommation in a range of different formats which includes imfornation
televant to section 172 matters when making relevant decisions. For example, each year we make an assessient of
the strength of the Partnership’s balance sheet and future prospects relative to market uncertaintics, ensuring that
future liabilities can be met.

As a Limited Parnership, the principal activity of the Partnership is Lo carry out property investment in retail stores
and mixed-use units for which a rental income is reccived. The Partnership has a limited number ol external suppliers
who provide specific administration and compliance services, otherwise the Partnership has had no commercial
business, and no employees or external customers during the period and as such the breadth of stakeholder
considerations that would often apply in operating or commereial trading companies have generally not applicd to
the decisions made by the Partnership. The Partnership’s key stakeholders are its leaseholders, debtors and creditors

In accordance with requirements this seetion 172(1) statement will be published on the lesco PLC website at
WW W leseople.com,
Approved by the General Partner on 18 August 2022 and signed on behalf of the General Partner by:

@\W
Robert Welch
Director, leseo Services Limited
For and on behalf of the General Partner
Tesco Sarum (GP)Y Limited
Registered Number: 07849882
Registered office: Tesco House, Shire Park. Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA, United Kingdom
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

GENERAL PARTNER'S REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY
2022

Tesco Sarum {(GP) Limited (the "General Partner”) presents its Report and the audited financial statements of The
Tesco Sarum Limited Partnership (the "Partnership”) for the 52 weeks ended 26 February 2022 (prior period: 52
weeks ended 27 February 2021 (~20217)). During the period, Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited acted as the General
Partner and Tesco Sarum (1LP) Limited acted as limited partners of the Partnership.

The Partnership was originally constituted under an Initial Partnership Agreement, which was then superseded by
the amended and restated Limited Partnership Agreement (the “L.imited Partnership Agreement™) on 31 January
2012. The Partnership shall continue for 30 years from the date of the amended and restated partnership agreement;
however, this term may be extended with the consent of the limited pariners.

Results and distributions

This information is included in the Strategic Report on page 1.
Future development

This information is included in the Strategic Report on page 1.

Going concern

In order to form a view as to the most appropriate basis of preparation of these financial statements, the General
Partner has assessed the likelihood of whether the Limited Partnership will be able to continue principal business
over a period of at least twelve months from the date of signing the financial statements versus the likelihood of
either intending to or being forced to either cease principal activities or putting the Partnership into liquidation.

The ability of the Partnership to meet its obligations on the loans and to meet its operating and administrative
expenses is dependent on the extent that it receives the amounts due from its sole customer, Tesco Stores Limited,
and its ability to discharge its obligations under the property portfolio leases.

While the securitisation structure is credit-linked to Tesco PLC (ultimate parent of Tesco Stores Limited) and relies
on rental receipts under the occupational lease, any changes in the Tesco PLC’s credit rating is not expected to
directly impact the Partnership's ability to repay the Partnership Loan and consequently the Partnership's ability to
repay the loans and its administrative costs. The Partnership has also entered into a RPT linked derivative financial
instrument to fix its cash inflows, thereby allowing the Partnership to meet its obligation whilst annual RPI increases
to rental income are lower than expected.

The certainty of cash flows is guaranteed by Tesco PLC. Further, any shorttalls in cash inflow as a result of
suppressed RPI rates are mitigated through a swap arrangement that ensures that the Partnership has sufficient
liquidity to meet its obligations.

The General Partner has noted that, at the reporting date the Partnership is in 4 net asset position yet a net current
liability position. The General Partner does not consider this a going concern risk with liabilitics being offset by
committed future rental income streams that are also RPI-linked. The General Partner has produced 18 months cash
flow forecasts demonstrating the Partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern.

With the swap arrangement deemed to be commercially viable, the General Partner believes that the Partnership
will continue as a going concern.

Therefore, the General Partner considers that the Partnership is able to meet its Labilities as they fall due, and
accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Events after the reporting period

Details of events after the reporting peried can be found in Note 19 to the financial statements.

Political donations

There were no political donations for the period (2021: £nil) and the Partnership did not incur any political
expenditure (2021: £nil)
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

GENERAL PARTNER’S REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY
2022 (continued)

Research and development

The Partnership does not undertake any research and development activities (2021: £nil).
Financial risk management

This information is included in the Strategic Report on page 2.

Employees

The Partnership had no employees during the period (2021: none}.

Partncrs

The Partners, including the General Partner are set out in Note 13 of the financial statement.

Disclosure of information to auditor
At the date of approval of this report, the General Partner contirms that:

» so far as the General Partner is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Partnership’s
auditor is unaware; and

» the General Partner has taken all the steps that ought 1o have taken as a General Partner to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Partnership's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with part 13 of the Limited
Partnership Agreement 2012 and part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 as required under the Regulations.

Cautionary statement regarding forward looking information

Where this document contains forward-looking statements, these are made by the General Pariner in good faith
based on the information available to them at the time of their approval of this Report. These statements should be
treated with caution due fo the inherent risks and uncertainties underlying any such forward-looking information, A
number of factors, including those in this document, could cause actual results to differ matenally from those
contained in any forward-looking statement.

General Partner's Responsibilities Statement

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

The Company law as applied to qualifying Partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regulations™) requires the Parinership to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law the
General Partner has prepared the Partnership financial statements in accordance with FRS 102 (the Financial
Reporting Standards applicable i the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland).

Under the Limited Partnership Act 1907, as amended by the company law, as applied to qualifying Partnerships,
the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been followed, comprising FRS 102,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

GENERAL PARTNER'S REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY
2022 {continuecd)

General Partner’s Responsibilities Statements (continued)

The General Partner 1s responsible tor keeping adequate accouming records that diselose with reasonable accwacy
at any time the tinancial position of the Partnership and enable them 1o ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companics Act 2006 as applicable o Limited Partnerships. They are also responsible {or safcguarding the
assets of the Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregulanitics.

The General Partner is required to act in the best interests of the Partnership and to pertorm its obligations under the
Fimited Partnership Agrecment.

Independent Auditor

Deloitte LLP, having indicated its willingness 1o continue in otfice, witl be deemed to be reappointed as aaditor

under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006,

Approved by the General Partner on 18 August 2022 and signed on behalf of the General Partner by:

@V\W

Robert Welch

Director, Tesce Services Limited

For and on behalf of the General Partier

Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited

Registered Number: 07846882

Registered Office: Teseo House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA, Unied Kingdom

S'Pégfi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE GENERAL PARTNER OF THE
TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinjon the financial statements of The Tesco Sarum Limited Partnership (the ‘qualifying partnership’):
*  give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying Partnership’s affairs as at 26 February 2022 and of
its profit for the 52 weeks period then ended;
¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland™; and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
¢ the Profit and Loss Account;
the Statement of Comprehensive Income;
the Balance Sheet;
the Statement of Changes in Partner’s Interest;
the Cash Flow Statement;
the Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Net Debt; and
the related notes 1to 19

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the qualifying partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethicat
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the General Partner’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 15 appropriate.

Based on the work we have perfornmed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the qualifying partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the General Partner with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the tinancial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The General Partner is responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. [f we identity such matenial inconsistencies or apparent material
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE GENERAL PARTNER OF THE
TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (continued)

Other information (continued)

misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a malterial misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenial misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of General Partner

As explained more fully in the General Partner’s responsibilities statement, the General Partner is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satistied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Partner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is responsible for assessing the qualifying partnership’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concemn basis of accounting unless the General Partner either intends to liquidate the qualitying partnership or o
cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor’s respoasibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
malertal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
[SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements ¢an arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our respensibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website
at: www. ire org ukeauditprstesponsibilitics. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibiliues, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
traud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the qualifying partnership’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the
qualifying partnership’s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws
and regulations. We also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of
irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the qualifying partnership operates in, and
dentified the key laws and regulations that:

+  had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
This includes the UK Companies Act as applied to qualifying partnerships; and

* do not have a dircet effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to
the qualifying partnership’s ability to operate or 1o avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team meluding relevant internal specialists such as valuations specialists
regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud
might occur in the financial statements.

As aresult of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud to be in respect of the valuation off
investment properties and in response we performed the following specific procedures:

*  we evaluated the design and implementation of the key controls related to the valuation of investment
properties;

e we obtained and reviewed the property valuation reports prepared by a third party expert engaged by the
qualifying partnership;



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE GENERAL PARTNER OF THE
TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (continued)

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud (continued)
* we engaged our valuation specialists to evaluate and determine the appropriateness of the valuation
methods, as well as reviewed the assumptions used within the valuation reports such as yield; and
s we reconciled the property valuation report to the financial statements.

In commeoen with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to pertorm specific procedures to respond to the
risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

s reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate
risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

e  enquiring of management and in-house / external legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

e reading minuies of meetings of those charged with governance.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the Strategic Report and the General Partner’s report for the financial period for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the Suategic Report and the General Partner’s report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the General Partner’s
report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to report in respect of the
following matters if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of General Partner’s remuneration specified by law are not made; or

»  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnershp’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the qualifying partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the qualitymg partnership and the qualifying partnership’s members as a body, for our audit work,
tor this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

.

IR

David Griftin FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalt of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Londoen, United Kingdom

18 August 2022

9|Page



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7147B8ED-3BF0-458C-ADCA-9355DF 54ED24

THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022

Notes 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £

Turnover 28,416,755 27,971,360
Gain/(loss) on revaluation of investment properties 8 53,340,000 (830,000)
Administrative expenses {643.276) (450,613)
Operating profit 4 81,113,479 26,670,747
Interest receivable and simular income 5 515,954 1,828
Interest payable and similar costs 6 (24,847,020) (26.320,945)
Profit before taxation 56,782,413 351,630
Tax on profit 7 - -
Profit for the financial period 56,782,413 351,630

All operations are continuing for the current and prior financial period.

The notes on pages 16 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED

26 FEBRUARY 2022

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
26 February 2022 27 February 2021
£ £
Profit for the financial period 56,782,413 351,630

Other comprehensive logs:
Losses on cash flow hedges (26,783,470) (2,229.152)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 29,998,943 (1,877.522)

All operations are continuing for the current and prior financial period.

The notes on pages 16 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 26 FEBRUARY 2022

Notes 26 February 2022 27 lebruary 202t
£ £
Fixed asscts
Investmen! propertics 8 554,800,000 501,460,000
554,800,000 501,460,000
Current assets
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 9 97,544 113,758
Cash at bank and in hand 1,769,095 1,742 646
1,866,639 1,856,404
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 10 (10,318,380) {5.065.613)
Net current liabilities (8,451,741) (3,209.209)
Total assets less current liabilities 546,348,259 498,250,791
Creduors: amounts falimg due afier more than one year It (486,665,163) (462,566,638)
Net assets 65,683,096 35,684,153
Partners' interest
Partners’ capital accounts 13 20,020 20,020
Cash flow hedge reserve 13 (53,030,996) (26,247,5206)
Profit and loss account 13 118,694,072 61,911,659
Partners' interest 65,683,096 35,684,153

The notes on pages 16 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements,

The financial statements on pages 1010 27 were approved by the General Partner and authonsed for issue on

18 August 2022 They were signed on its behalt by:

Er it

Robert Welch

Ihrector, | esco Serviees Limited

For and on behalt of the General Parner
Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited

Registered Number: 07849882

Registered Oflice: Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Webwyn Garden Cuy, AL7 1GA. United Kingdom
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

SIATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS’ INTERESTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED

26 FEBRUARY 2022
Partners' Cash flow Profit and Total
capital accounts hedge reserve  loss account
£ £ £ £
Balance as at 29 February 2020 20,020 (24,018.374) 61,560,029 37,561,675
Profit for the period - - 351,630 351,630
Othier comprehensive loss for the financial peniod - (2,229.152) - (2.229,152)
Total comprehensive (lossyincome for the - (2,229.152) 351,630 (1,877,522)
financial period
Balance as at 27 February 2021 20,020  (26,247,526) 61,911,659 35,684,153
Profit for the period - - 56,782,413 56,782,413
Other comprehensive loss for the financial period - (26,783.470) - (26,783470)
Total comprehiensive {loss)/incoine for the - (26,783,470 56,782,413 29,998,943
financial period
Balance as at 26 February 2022 20,020  (53,030,996) 118,694,072 65,683,096

The notes on pages 16 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022

Notes 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
26 February 2022 27 February 2021
£ i
Net cash inflow from operating activities 14 27,972,815 27,705,048
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received - 1,828
Net cash flow from investing activities - 1,828
Cash flow from financing activities
Loan repayments (2,874,631) (1,193.971)
Interest paid (25,071,735) (26,307.761)
Net cash used in financing activities (27,946,366) (27,501,732)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 26,449 205,144
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the period 1,742,646 1,537,502
Cash al_ui cash equivalents at the end of 1,769,095 1,742,646
the period

The notes on pages 16 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT FOR THE
52 WEEKS ENDED 26 FEBRUARY 2022

Not 52 weeks ended 32 weeks ended

oles 26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 15 26,449 205,144
Increase in net deht 15 (23,166,250) (1,048,366)
Increase in net debt (23,139,801 (843,220
Opening net debt 15 (46.3,629,457) (462,786,235)
Closing net debt (486,769,258) (463,629,457

The notes on pages 16 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022

1. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of The Tesco Sarum Limited Partnership (the “Partnership™} have been prepared in
accordance with FRS 102 (the Financial Reporting Standards applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic
of [reland) and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying Parinerships by the Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008 (and as required by the amended and restated Limited Partnership Agreement).

2. General information

The Partnership was established on 1 December 2011 and is registered as a Limited Partnership in England and
Wales under the Limited Partnership Act 1907, The Partnership was originally constituted under the Initial
Partnership Agreement which was then superseded by the Limited Partnership Agreement on 31 January 2012. The
Partnership is limited by Partners’ Capital.

The functional and presentational currency of the Partnership is Pound Sterling (£) because that is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Partnership operates. The financials are rounded to the nearest
Pound Sterling (£), except when otherwise stated.

The address of the registered office is Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA,
United Kingdom. The nature of the Partnership’s operations and its principal activities are set out in the Strategic
Report on page 1.

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied consistently threughout the
period and to the preceding period, unless otherwise stated.

3. Accounting policies
a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Partnership on the going concem basis and are prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain investment properties, recognition of financial derivative
instruments measured at fair value, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Partnership elected to adopt the fair value model for holding its investment property, as permitted under Section
16 of FRS 102, The Partnership has included the fair value of its hedging instruments within the Balance Sheet and
hedging reserve, per Section 12 of FRS 102.

In order to align the Balance Sheet to FRS 102 prescribed presentation, the company has now changed the term
“Non-current Asset” to “Fixed asset” in the Balance Sheet. This change is purely presentational and does not impact
the amounts as disclosed in the prior year or current year.

b) Going concern

In order to form a view as to the most appropriate basis of preparation of these financial statements. the General
Partner has assessed the likelihood of whether the Limited Partnership will be able to continue principal business
over a period of at least twelve months from the date of sigming the financial statemenis versus the likelihood of
cither intending to or being forced to either cease trading or putting the Partnership into liquidation.

The ability of the Partnership to meet its obligations on the loans and to meet its operating and admunistrative
expens<s is dependent on the extent that it receives the amounts due from its sole customer, Tesco Stores Limited
and its ability to discharge its obligations under the property portfolio leases.

While the securitisation structure 1s credit-linked to the Group (ultimate parent of Tesco Stores Limited) and relies
on rental receipis under the occupational lease, any changes in the Group's credit rating is not expected to directly
impact the Partnership's ability to repay the Partnership Loan and consequently the Partnership's ability to repay the
loans and its administrative costs. The Partnership has also entered into an RPI linked derivative financial instrument
10 11x its cash inflows, thereby allowing the Partnership to meet its obligation whilst annual RPT increases to rental
income are lower than expected.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)
b) Going concern (coatinued)

The certainty of cash flows is guaranteed by Tesco PLC. Further, any shortfalls in cash inflow as a result of
suppressed RPI rates are mitigated through a swap arrangement that ensures that the Partnership has sufficient
liquidity to meet its obligations.

The General Partner has noted that, at the reporting date the Partnership is in a net assel position yet a net current
liability position. The General Partner does not consider this a going concern nisk with liabilities being otfset by
comumutted future rental meome streams that are also RP1-Imked. The General Partner has produced 18 months cash
flow forccasts demonstrating the Partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern,

With the swap arrangement deemed to be commercially viable, the General Partner believes that the Partnership will
continue as a going concern.

Therefore, the General Partner considers that the Partnership is able to meet its liabilities as they fall due, and
accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

¢) Critical acconnting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires General Panner to make judgements, estimales and assumptions in
applying the Partnership’s accounting policics to determine the reported amounts of assets, liabilities. income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

he estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects enly that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision atlects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimation of future RPI rates impact upen the valuation of the derivative instrument. Management has applied
their own internal estimations of future RPI movements. This has been benchmarked against market-data for
accuracy and is in line with the methedologies used by the Tesco PLC in valuing their derivative instrument. A
credit risk is also applied to the counterparty in estimating the valuation of the derivative instrument.

For investment properties, determining the value requires an estimation of expected open-market rental income as
well as an expected yield to calculate its fair value. Please refer Note 8 for details.

Judgements

There are no judgements that have a significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
d) Significant accounting policies

Investment properties

The Parnership carries its investment property at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in profit or
loss. The Partnership engaged independent valuation specialists to determine fair value at 26 February 2022.

The valuation is undertaken on an open market basis, deemed 10 be representative of fair value. The determined fair
value of the investment property is most sensitive lo the estimated yield as well as the long term vacancy rate. The
key assumptions used to determine the fair value of investment property are further explained in Note 8.

No amortisation or depreciation is provided in respect of frechold or long leasehold properties. The departure from
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, which requires all properties to be depreciated, is, in the opinon of
the General Partner, necessary to show a true and fair view. The financial effect of this departure cannot be
reasonably quantified, as amortisation or depreciation is only one of the many factors retlected in the annual
valuation and the amount which might otherwise have been shown cannot be separately identified or quantified.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

3. Accounting pelicies (continued)
d) Significant acconnting policies (continued)

Leases and rental income

I eases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transter substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The properties owned by the Partnership are being leased out under operating leases. Rental income is recognised
in the Mrofit and Loss Account when carned, with 1ent received in advance being deferred on the Balance Sheet. The
leases are subject to annual uplifts which are linked to the Retail Price Index (RPT), subject to & minimum annual
increase of nil and a maximum annual increase of 5%.

100% of the rental income generated during the period was generated in the United Kingdom by letting out propertics
which are all located in the United Kingdom.

In line with the requirements of Section 20.25 of FRS 102, as the rental income has been structured to increase in
line with the expected general inflation 10 compensate for the Partnership's expected inflationary cost increases, the
Partnership has not recognised rental income from operating leases on a straight line basis.

The Partnership operates within one business segment being that of the leasing of 1ts investment properties with
business prineipally transacted in the United Kingdom (UK).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Partnership becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The expected maturity of the financial assets and liabilities is not considered to be
materially different to their current and non-current classification.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The Partnership determines the classification of its financial asscts at initial recognition. All financial assets are
initially measured and recognised at transaction price including directly attributable transaction costs.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a tune frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace (regutar way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Partnership
commits to purchase or sell the asset. The Partnership’s financial assets include cash, investments, debiors and other
receivables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
Debtars

Debtors are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are initially recognised at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method (EIR), less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in interest income in the Profit and Loss Account. For a non-interest bearing debtors that is receivable
within one year on norrnal business terms, amortised cost shall be measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash
or other consideration expected to be received (i.e. net of impairment). Losses arising from impairment arc
recognised in the Profit and Loss Account in other operating expenses. Cash, debtors and other receivables are
carried as debtors.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

d) Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial vecognition and measurement

The Partnership determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities
are recognised initially at transaction value and in the casc of loans and borrowings, plus dircetly attributable
transaction costs. The principal financial liabilities include loan, other payable and derivative financial instrument.

Subseguent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
Creditors

Creditors are financial Labilitics with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
liabilities are initially recogniscd at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cifective
interest rate method (EIR), less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interest expense in the Profit and Loss Account. For a non-interest bearing creditors that is payable within one year
on normal business terms, amortised cost shall be measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other
consideration expected to be paid. Loans and other payables are classified as creditors.

De-recognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when (a) the contractuai rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or are settled: (b) the Partnership transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset: or {¢) the Partnership, despite having retained some, but not all, significant risks
and rewards of ownership, has transferred control of the asset to another party. Financial liabilities are derecognised
only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting

Financial assets and Habilities are oitset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or o
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Parthership uses derivative financial instruments to reduce its exposure to RPI rate movements. The Partnership
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes; however, if derivatives do not
qualify for hedge accounting they are accounted for as such.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised and stated at fair value. Where derivatives do not quality for hedge
accounting, any gains or losses on re-measurement are immediately recognised in Profit and Loss Account. Where
derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship and the item being hedged. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Parmership is required to
document from inception the relationship between the item being hedged and the hedging instrument.

The Partnership 15 alse required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument, along with its risk management objectives and clear identification of the risk in the
hedged item that is being hedged by the hedging instrument, which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on
an ongoing basis. This effectiveness testing is performed at each financial reporting date to ensure that the hedge
remains highly effective. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge the Partnership determines and documents
causes for hedge ineffectiveness. Derivative financial instruments with maturity dates of more than one year from
the Balance Sheet date are disclosed as non-current. Note 12 sets out details of the fair value of the derivative
instruments used for hedging purposes.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)
d) Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)}

Cash flow hedging

Derivative financial instruments are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the Partnership’s exposure to
variability in cash flows that are either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability,
or a highly probable forecasted transaction. The effective element of any gain or loss from re-measuring the
derivative instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The associated cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from other comprehensive income and recognised in the Profit
and Loss Account in the same period or periods during which the hedged iransaction affects the Profit and Loss
Account.

The classification of the effective portion when recognised in Profit and Loss Account is the same as the
classification of the hedged transaction. Any element of the re-measurement of the derivative instrument which does
not meet the criteria for an effective hedge is recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account within interest
income or costs.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Partnership revokes the hedging relationship, hedging instrument expires
or is sold, terminated or exercised, or if a voluntary de-designation takes place or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. At that point in time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is
retained in the Statement of Changes in Partners’ Interest uatil the forecast transaction occurs or the original hedged
item affects the Profit and Loss Account. If a forecast hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recognised in the Statement of Changes in Partners’ Interest is rectassified to the Profit and
Loss Account.

Fair value measurement

The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market. When quoted prices are
unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset provides evidence ot fair value as long as there
has not been a significant change in economic circumstances or a signiticant lapse of time since the transaction took
place. If the market 15 not active and recent transactions of an identical asset on their own are not a good estimate of
fair value, the fair value is estimated by using a valuation technique.

In addition, for finaneial reporting purposes, tair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for wdentical assets or labilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 mputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Cash and net debt
Cash is represented by balance with banks and cash in hand.
Net debt is compnsed of loans advanced to the Partnership and cash.

Interest payable and receivable

Interest payable and receivable is calculated on an accrual basis.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

d) Significant accounting policies (continued)

Allocation of profits and drawings

The net profits of the Partnership incurred in ¢ach period are divided between the Partners i the following

proportions:
Tesco Sarum (1LP) Limited 99.9%
Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited 0.10%

Any net losses of the Partnership in each period are borne by the Partners in the same proportion that they share the
balance of the net profits of the Parership.

4. Operating profit
The General Partner received no emoluments for its services to the Partnership (2021: £mil).

The auditor's remuneration in respect of audit services in the period amounted to £22.475 (2021: £22,475). The non-
audit fees for the period is £nil (2021: £nil).

The Partnership had no employees during the period (2021: none).

5. Interest recejvable and similar income
52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

26 February 2022 27 February 2021
£ £

Interest received on bank deposits - 1,828

1.828

Interest income from derivative financial instruments
Total

|t
|
hi|th
2l
22

6. Interest payable and similar costs

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £
Interest payable on loan taken from Group undertakings 24,847,020 24,980,999
Amount payable on derivative financial instrument - 1,339,946
Total 24,847,020 26,320,945

The interest payable on other loans is related o the loan provided by Tesco Property Finance $ PLC.

The amount payable on derivative financial instrument is related to RPT linked swap with Tesco Property Finance 5
PLC, which in tum holds a back-to-back arrangement with Tesco PLC. Tesco PLC hold a cash-flow hedge
arrangement externally. All arrangements have been set up to manage the cash tlow fluctuations generated from the
cash inflows of The Tesco Sarum Partnership Limited (refer to Note 10 and Note 11},

7. Tax on profit

The financial information does nol incorporate any charge or liability for taxation on the results of the Partnership,
as the relevant income tax or tax on capital gains is the responsibility of the individual Partners.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 {continued)

8. Investment properties

26 Febrnary 2022 27 February 2021

Land and buildings

£ £
Valuation:
Opening balance 501,460,000 502,310,000
Revaluation 53,340,000 (856,000)
Closing balance 554,800,000 501,460,000

The investment properties have been valued by Cushman & Wakefield LLP which is deemed to be a suitably
qualified valuer of the General Partner on a fair value basis at 26 February 2022. The valuation was carried out in
accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

This fair value has been determined by an independent valuer, by applying an appropriate rental yield to the rentals
eamned by the investment properties. There are no lease incentives.

The property has been valued on the basis of market value which the valuer confirms to be fair value, as the estimated
amount for which an asset or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm's length transaction atter proper marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion. This has been subject to any existing leases of guarantees; otherwise assuming
vacant possession.

The average yield across the portfolio is 5.34% (2021: 5.63%) with a rental income of £301.03 (2021: £287.22) per
square metre of gross internal tloor area. There were no restrictions on the realisability of investment property or the

remittance of income and proceeds of disposal, nor were there any contractual obligations to purchase, construct or
develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance or enhancements.

9. Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £
Amounts owed by Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited 91,818 91,818
VAT asset 5,418 21,658
Prepayments and accrued income 308 282
Total 97,544 113,758

Amounts owed by Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited are unsecured, interest Iree, have no fixed date of repayment and are
repayable on demand.

10. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £
Accruals and deferred income 2,441,190 2,256,149
Tesco Property Finance 5 PLC 7,873,190 2805464
Amount owed to Group undertakings 4,000 4,000
Total 10,318,380 5,065,613
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

10. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (continued)

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable
on demand (refer to Note 18). The loan from Tesco Property Finance 5 PLC incurs interest at a fixed rate of 5.6611%
and is repayable in instalments. The loan is sccured on the Partnership’s investment properties (refer to Note 12).

11. Creditors: amounts falling after more than one year
26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £
Tesco Property Finance 5 PLC 428,119,819 436,129,739
RPI linked derivative instrument 52,545,344 26,436,899
Total 480,665,163 462,566,638

The loan principal at the date of issue was £450,500,000 and the loan issue costs were £5,423,848. The total value
of the loan, net of loan issue costs, as al 26 February 2022 is £435,993,009 (2021: £438,935,203).

The loan from Tesco Property Finance 5 PLC incurs interest at a fixed rate of 5.6611% and is to be repaid by 13
October 2041. The loan is secured on the Partnership’s investment properties.

12. Financial instruments

The Partnership holds a back-to-back arrangement with Tesco PLC, which holds an RPIl-linked derivative
arrangement externally. Both the swap and the loan are considered to be Level 2 financial liabilities under the fair
value hierarchy, being that they are based on inputs other than quoted prices that are observable efther directly or
indirectly.

The main financial risk faced by the Parmership relates to fluctuations in RPI rates, the risk of default by
counterparties to financial transactions, and the availability of funds to meet business needs. The management of
these risks 1s outsourced as approved in the Limited Partnership Agreement. The outsourcing arrangements are
monitored by the General Partner. The swap valuations above, based on the discounted expected future cash lows
associated with the swaps, are linked to future inflation levels as referenced by the RPI and this gives rise to inherent
uncertainty as to their fair value.

Market risk

The Partnership’s debt is issued at tixed rates with the principal repayments increasing over the term of the loan.
Cash inflows are subject to annual uplifts in RPI that may not cover the Partnership’s cash outflows. This exposes
the Partnership to RPI rate nisk which 1s managed through the use of derivative instruments.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash cquivalents, debtors, other receivables and financial instruments. The
management of these risks is outsourced as approved in the Partnership Agreement.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is managed by short-term and long-term cash tflow forecasts.

The Partnership considers its maximum liquidity risk to be £490,983,543 (2021: £467,632,251), being the
Parinership's total financial liabilities.

The counterparty exposure under derivative contracts is £52,545,344 (2021: £26.436,899). This represents the
present value of future cashilows over the underlying property lease terms under the RPI linked derivative contract.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

12. Financial instruments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis
The swap valuations above, based on the discounted expected tuture cash tlows associated with the swaps, are hnked
to future inflation levels as referenced by the RPI and this gives rise to inherent uncertainty as to their fair value.

As the RPI rates are hedged at a fixed rate, any increase or decrease will have nil impact. Sensilivity analysis is not
shown as it has a nil impact.

Capital risk

The Partnership’s objectives when managing capital (defined as net debt partners’ interests) are (o safeguard the
Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns to Partners, while maintaining a strong
credit rating and headroom through an appropriate balance of debt and equity funding. The Partnership manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to economic conditions and the sirategic objective
of the Partnership.

Financial assets and liabilities by category

The accounting classifications of each class of financial asset and liability as at 26 February 2022 and 27 February

2021 are as follows:

Loans and Fair value through Total

receivables/other  other comprehensive

financial liabilities income
£ £ £

At 26 February 2022

Cash at bank and in hand 1,769,695 - 1,769,095
Other receivables 97,544 - 97.544
Long-term borrowings (435,993,009) - (435,993,009)
Derivatives - Back to back arrangement - (52,545,344}  (52,545,344)
Other payableg (2,445,190) - (2,445,190}
(436,571,560) (52,545,344) (489,116,904)
Loans and Fair value through Total

recervables/other other comprehensive

financial liabilities income
£ £ £

At 27 February 2021

Cash at bank and in hand 1,742 646 - 1,742,646
Other receivables 113,758 - 113,758
Long-term borrowings {438,935,203) - (438935203
Derivatives - Back to back arangement - (26,436,899)  (26.436,899)
Other payables (2,260,149) - {2,260,149)
(439,338,948) (26,436,899) (465,775,847

There is no netting off in relation to any of the above financial assets and liabilities.
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

13. Cumulative partners’ account

Partners Accounts as at 26 | Partners® capital Cash flow hedge| Profit and loss Total
February 2022 ACCOUNLS reserve Account|

£ £ £ £
Tesco Sarum (ILP) Limated 20,000 (52,978,018) 118,575,496 65,617,478
Tesco Sarum (GP)Y Limited 20 (52,978) 118,576 65,618
Total 20,028 (53,030,99¢6) 118,694,072 65,683,096,

The Partnership was formed on 1 December 2011. The Partnershup was originally constituted under the Initial
Partnership Agreement, which was then superseded by the Limited Partnership Agreement on 31 January 2012, with
capital injections totalling £20,000.

Tesco Sarum (1LP) Limited owns 99.9%, and Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited owns 0.1% of the Partnership. On 17%
December 2021, Tesco Sarum (1LP) Limited bought additional 49.95% share in the partnership which was earlier

held by Trnity College, Cambridge, thereby making the total share held by Tesco Samum (1LP) Limited 99.9%.

Partners’ capiial accounts represent capital contributed by the partners in the Limited Partnership.

Cash flow hedge reserve represents the cumulative portion of gains and losses on hedging instruments deemed

effective,

Profit and loss account represent cumulative profits or losses, net

14. Net cash flows from operatiag activities

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating

of distribution paid.

activities is shown befow:

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £

Operating profit 81,113.479 26,670,747

Adjustment for:

Loss/(Gain) on revaluation of investment property (53,340,000) 850,000

Non-cash Admin expenses 1,919) -
Working capital movements:

{Increase) in debtors 16,214 4970

Increase in creditors 185,041 189,271

Net cash inflow from operating activities 27,972 815 27,705,048

15. Analysis of changes in net debt

27 Februoary 2021

Cash Non-cash

26 February 2022

movement  movement*
£ £ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 1,742,646 26,449 - 1,769,095
Debt due within one year (2,805,465} 2,874,631 (7,942 356) (7,873,190)
Debt due atter more than one year (462,566,638) - (18.,098,525) {480,665,163)
(463,629,457} 2,901,080  (26,040.881) (486,769,258)
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THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continued)

15. Analysis of changes in net debt (continued)

29 February 2020 Cash Non-cash 27 February 2021

movement movement*
£ £ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 1,537,502 205,144 - 1,742,640
Debt due within one year (1,128,314) 1,128,705 (2,805,856) (2,805.465)
Debt due after more than one year (463,195,423 - 628,785 (462 566,638)
(467 786,735) 1,333,819 (2,177,071) (463 ,629,457)

*Non-cash adjustments represent effective interest rate adjustments to the Loan from Tesco Property Finance 5 PLC
and adjustments to fair values of Back-to-back arrangement falling due more than one year.

16. Receivables under operating lease

Tesco Stores Ltd is the sole tenant of the Partnership, with rental payments gnaranteed by Tesco ple. The 30 vears
Iease, on full repairing and insuring fenms, are due to expire in 2041, The enant has the option (o take 3 frther
leases of the premises, each for a period of 10 years at market rent. The tenant had a break option available in January
2022, however, the tenant has not exercised the option, therefore minimum lease receivable has been caleulated till
the remaining lease term.

Total future minimurn lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

26 February 2022 27 February 2021

£ £

Not later than one year 29,612,030 28,253,768
After one year but not more than five years 118,448,121 -
After five years 436,777,447 -
584,837,598 28,253,768

The operating lease amounts shown above relate to rents receivable from Tesco Stores Limited,
17. Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party
The partners of the Partnership are Tesco Sarum (1LP) Limited and Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited.

The ultimate parent undertaking is Tesco PLC. Tesco PLC is registered in Engiand and Wales and copies of the
Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022 are available from the Company Secretary at the registered
office: Tesco PLC, Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA United Kingdom.

18, Related party transactions and balance

During the 52 weeks period ended 26 February 2022 the Partnership entered into transactions with related parties,
in the ordinary course of business. Transactions entered into, and balances outstanding at 26 February 2022, are as

follows:
26 February 2022 27 Febrary 2021
Traosactions Relationship Tacome Expense [ncome Expense
£ £ £ £
Tesco Stores Limited | Subsidiary of parent 28,416,755 - 27,971,360 -
undertaking
Spen Hill Subsidiary of parent - 222,280 - 210,832
Management Limited undertaking

28|Page



) &ocuSign Envelope ID: 7147BSED-3BF 0-458C-ADCA-9355DF54ED24

THE TESCO SARUM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED

26 FEBRUARY 2022 (continue)
18. Related party transactions and balance (continued)
[ 26 February 2022 27 February 2021
Balances Relationship Debtor Creditor Debtor Creditor
£ £ £ £
Spen Hill Management Subsidiary of parent )
Limited undertaking 111,757 i 127,500
Tesco Sarum (GP) Limited General Partner 91,818 1,000 91 818 1,000
Tesco Sarum  (Nominee Subsidiary of parent
Holdeo) Limited undertaking B 1,000 ) 1,000
Tf:sgo Sarum (Nominee 1} Subsidiary ()f. parent _ 1,000 ) 1000
Limited undertaking
Tesco Sarum (Nominee 2) Subsidiary of parent
Limited undertaking ) 1,000 ) 1,000

References to balances outstanding at period end are disclosed in Note 9 and 10.

19. Events after the reporting period

There are no material events since the Balance Sheet date which require disclosure.
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